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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of BLS Kendras Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BLS Kendras Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of profit and loss(
including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {(“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023 and its profit and comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The above information is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management'’s Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules
issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting fromj udfs higher than for one resulting from

\ Page 2 0of 13



S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of. the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are

in agreement with the books of account; P

e

- LHC Ay
/\‘(.___:/ S

Page 3 of 13




d)

f)
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In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

During the year, the Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its director.
Accordingly, reporting requirement under the provisions of section 197 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

iil. ~ The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, inclg;;!_i:l}gmf._o[eign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded{i{ﬁ;\}"nz'rf’iit?‘i:r{"g'f'-d: "i?-therwise, that the Company
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shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Ei.’ﬁ"',sﬁegistrationNé.;zﬁﬁN

«—
AMIT GOEL

Partner
~Membership No. 500607

NTER & i
o,

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 09, 2023
UDIN : 23500607BGURKX1730

Page 5 of 13



S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of BLS Kendras Private Limited
dated May 09,2023, on its financial statements.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

i)(a){A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(i)(a)(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (1) (a) (B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(i)(b) ) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified every year. In
accordance with this programme, property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(i){c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {or
intangible assets or both) during the year.

(i)(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made

thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus
paragraph 3 (ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii)(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits which is in excess of Rs. five crores
in aggregate from bank during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Therefore, reporting requirement under clause 3 {ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable on the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has granted unsecured loans to companies in respect of which
the requisite information is as below. The Company has not made investments or provided any guarantee
or security, granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,

other parties, firm or limited liability partnership du_r/in_;_%__i;_lin:g year.
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a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has given loans to its holding company which is as below:

I_Aggregate amount granted/ provided during Loan (Rs.in Lakhs)
the year
- Holding Company (BLS E-Services Limited) 1836.25

Balance outstanding (including opening
balance) as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases

- Holding Company (BLS E-Services Limited) 518.75

|

(iii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the terms and conditions of the grant of loan and advances in the nature of loans made
during the year are prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(iii)(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated . There has been no default on the part of the party to whom
the money has been lent. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any
party during the year.

(iii)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans
given and advances in the nature of loan given.

(iii)(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during
the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to same parties.

(iii)(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, in respect of loans given, guarantees and security given by the Company, in our opinion the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the the Act have been complied with.

(v} The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for
the Company’s activities. Hence, the provisions of clausg;3 {vi) of the Order is not applicable to the

—_—

Company.
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(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and there were no
undisputed statutory dues payable as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the
date they become payable.

(vii} (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix)(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (ix) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3 (ix) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for

long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3 (ix) {e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3( ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(@a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by-the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audlt./ /

O
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(xi)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi){c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of
section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv)(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to
report under clause 3 (xiv) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi){b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtained a valid
Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

(xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period oﬁgﬁ?ﬁéﬁ?iﬁfdm the balance sheet date.

- e ]
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We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) The Company is not required to spent money on corporate social responsibility as per section 135
of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3 (xx) (a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of the standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this
report.

For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 500607
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 09, 2023
UDIN : 23500607BGURKX1730
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of BLS Kendras Private Limited dated
May 09,2023 on its financial statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2 (f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BLS Kendras Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Iinternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
Based on” the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
The essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
Responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
Controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
Including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
Of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
Preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
Reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whgi'h'_éj}_;du_ to-fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorization
of management and directors of the Company; and

C. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

_f.;‘,i’ﬁ;%;g?glstratlon Numb:jEjSGN
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\ N o “ AMIT GOEL

B Partner
Membership Number: 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 09, 2023
UDIN : 23500607BGURKX1730
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31 MARCH, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I ASSETS
1 Non-current asset
a. Property, plant & equipment 3 0.54 110
b. Intangible assets 4 - -
c. Right of use assets 5 1511 35.22
d. Financial assets:
(i) Other financial assets 6 541.26 646.06
e. Deferred tax assets(net) 7 299 3.66
f. Other non-current assets 8 - 081
g. Non current tax assets (net) 9 19.89 27.52
579.79 714.37
2 Currentasset
a. Financial assets
(i) Trade receivable 10 - 0.14
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 366.42 407.80
(iif) Bank balance other than (ii) above 12 1,105.10 684.98
(iv) Other financial assets 13 38.61 11.91
b. Other current assets 14 87.54 96.98
Total current assets 1,597.67 1,201.81
TOTAL ASSETS 2,177.46 1,916.18
II EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 Equlty
a. Equity share capital 15 50.00 50.00
b. Other equity 16 1,225.65 597.54
Total equity 1,275.65 647.54
2 Liabllldes
Non-current liabilltles
a. Lease Liability 17 - 16.92
b. Provisions 18 8.79 10.63
Total non-current llabllites 8.79 27.55
3 Current liabilites
a. Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liability 19 16.78 2042
(ii) Borrowings 20 - 150.00
(iii) Trade payables 21
Total dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total dues to creditor other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18.31 27.56
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 752.71 971.03
b. Other current liabilities 23 104.69 71.45
c. Current tax liabilities (net) 24 - -
d. Provision 25 0.53 0.63
Total current liablllties 893.02 1,241.09
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,177.46 1,916.18
Corporate information and significant accounting policies 1,2

The accompanylng notes referred to above formed an Integral part of the financlal statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S S Kotharl Mehta & Co

For and on hehalf of the board of directors of

2\

&S\Kendras Privalte Limlited

—
A= 2y
Dinesh Sharma anjeev Kumar

Director
DIN No. 00956860

Director
DIN No. 02826773

/ ety
Membership number: SD%&??U"!TE‘

Place : New Delhi
Date ; May 09,2023



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH, 2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 Revenue from operations 26 7,539.42 6,510.29
1II  Other income 27 62.21 58.15
TOTAL INCOME(I+II) 7,601.63 6,568.44
III EXPENSES:
Cost of services 28 4,826.75 4,074.07
Employee benefits expense 29 14296 192.45
Finance costs 30 20.66 19.63
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 31 21.48 21.58
Other expenses 32 1,751.91 1,856.45
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,763.76 6,164.18
IV PROFIT BEFORE TAX 837.87 404.26
V  TAX EXPENSE:
a) Current tax 211.78 103.73
b) Deferred tax Charge/ (Credit) 0.29 (0.66)
c) Tax for earlier years (1.19) 1.45
TOTAL TAX EXPENSES 210.88 104.52
VI Profit for the year (IV-V) 626.99 299.74
VII Other comprehensive income (OCI)
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 1.50 0.06
(b) Less: Tax on Re-measurements of defined benefit plans (0.38) (0.01)
Total other comprehensive income: 112 0.05
VIII TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (VI+VII) 628.11 299.79
IX Earning per share ( Basic & Diluted) (Rs.) 33 125.40 59.95
X  Corporate information and significant accounting policies 1,2

The accompanying notes referred to above formed an integral part of the financial statements

For S S Kothari Meh
Chartered Accoun :
Firm's regisfratio

Lk
Waéi; coj/

Partner
Membership number: 500607

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 09, 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
BLS Kendras Private Limited

>
o

" Dinesh Sharma

Director
DIN No. 00956860

anjeev Kumar
Director
DIN No. 02826773



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit for the period (Before Tax) 837.87 404.26
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation & amortization expense 21.48 21.58
Finance costs 20.66 19.63
Interest income (60.67) (54.59)
Operating profit before working capital change 819.34 390.88
Adjustments for:
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 0.14 (0.00)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial current assets 8.73 (2.06)
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets 9.44 (46.90)
(increase)/ decrease in non current financial asset 0.81 (0.81)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial non-current assets (0.42) 0.41
(Decrease)/ increase in non-current provision (1.84) 2.82
(Decrease)/increase in trade payable (9.24) 8.01
(Decrease)/ increase in other financial current liabilities (217.67) 313.83
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities 33.24 20.78
(Decrease)/ increase in current provision 1.40 (2.20)
Cash flow from operations 643.93 684.76
Direct taxes paid (202.98) (141.97)
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) 440.95 542.79
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (0.81) (57.08)
Investment interm deposits 79.88 (626.73)
Loan given to holding company (518.75) -
Interest income from fixed deposit and loan 149.21 8.17
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (290.46) (675.64)
h flow f i s s
Proceeds/(Payments) from current borrowings (150.00) 150.00
Addition/(Repayment) of lease liabilities (22.40) 37.34
Interest paid (19.47) (32.28)
Net cash Flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C) (191.87) 155.06
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (41.38) 22.21
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 407.80 385.59
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (refer note 11) 366.42 407.80
Components of cash and cash equivalent
with bank- on current accounts 319.86 333.75
cash on hand 46.56 74.05
Total cash and cash equivalent 366.42 407.80

Notes:

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting

Standard (Ind AS 7)- Statement of Cash Flows.

Opening Balance | Cash inflow/(outflows) Closing Balance
as at April 01, 2022 as at March 31, 2023
Current borrowing 150.00 (150.00) -
Opening Balance | Cash inflow/(outflows) Closing Balance
as at April 01, 2021 as at March 31, 2022
Current borrowing = 150.00 150.00

Corporate information and significant accounting policies

1,2

The accompanying notes referred to above formed an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S S Kothari Mehta & Company

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
BLS Kendras Private Limited

\\\

Chartered Agcounfant ( ;

Fii'n"s registrationl nym _‘:‘?_; '/
s / ) = W

Amit Goel Dinesh Sharma njeev Kumar

Director
DIN No. 02826773

Director
DIN No. 00956860

Partner
Membership number: 50

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 09, 2023



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

A. Equity Share Capital

Total
As at March 31, 2021 50.00
Changes in equity shares capital during the year =
As atMarch 31, 2022 50.00
Changes in equity shares capital during the year -
As atMarch 31, 2023 50.00
B. Other Equity
Other
Retained Earnings Comprehenslve Total
Income

Balance as at March 31, 2021(a) 295.68 2.07 297.75
Addition during the year:
Profit for the year 299.74 - 299.74
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax

Remasurment benefits defined benefits plans .. 0.05 0.05
Total compreshensive income for the year 2021-22 (b) 299.74 0.05 299.79
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (c)=(a+b) 595.42 2.12 597.54
Addition during the year:
Profit for the year 626.99 - 626.99
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax

Remasurment benefits defined benefits plans - 1.12 1,12
Total compreshensive income for the year 2022-23 (d) 626.99 1.12 628.11
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (e)=(c+d) 1,222.41 3.24 1,225.65

Corporate information and significant accounting policies

1,2

The accompanying notes referred to above formed an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S S Kothari Mg

Chartered A oun
Firm's regjstrdtio

\N\
Amit Goel
Partner
Membership number: SDQEDT

\l'.

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 09, 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
BLS Kendras Private Limited

. |

Dinesh Sharma anjeev Kumar
Director Director
DIN No. 00956860 DIN No. 02826773



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

orporate Informatios i eparation & significant A ling Policie

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

4]

The Corporate Information
BLS Kendra's Private Limited is a private company incorporated in India under Indian Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The
registered office is located at G-4B-1, Extension, Mohan Co-Operative Indl. Estate Mathura Road New Delhi.

The Punjab Sewa Kendra (PSK) -Which is an e-governance project- was awarded to the company by Punjab State government to
provide citizen Services with the setting up of Sewa Kendras across the state.

These financial statements were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 09, 2023

Basis of Preparaticn of Financial Statements and Significant Accounting policies
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance :

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the Act as amended.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use

Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting
except for financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the
accounting policy set out below:

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 116 - Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use
in Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets.

The financial statements are presentation in Indian Rupees (Rs) and all the values are rounded off to the nearest thousands, except
number of shares, earning per share or wherever otherwise stated.

Functional & Presentation Currency:

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee ('INR’),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

Current & Non current classification:

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities.




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.b Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31,2023

(a)

(b)

©

(@

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition
Rendering of Services

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing Citizens services through Sewa Kendras of Punjab State E Governance Society
which are operationally controlled, maintained and Managed by the company.

The Company also provide a list of various related value added services like Courier,, Domestic Money Transfer , Aadhar card etc.

Revenue from services is recognized upon receipt of money from applicants in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
company receive in exchange for the services rendered.

Other Income
(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method. Interest income is included under the
head of "other income” in the statement of profit and loss account.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the same.

Property Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation . Cost includes purchase
price and also other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance
costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation
are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gain or losses are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method over the useful lives of property, plant and equipment as estimated by
management. Depreciation is provided prorata basis on written down value at the rates determined based on estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment where applicable, prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. The residual value, useful lifes and
method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. The useful life of various class of items considered in the financial statements is as under:

Class of assets Useful life (in years)

Computer 3

Compter software 3
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognised, when it is probable that if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to
flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite
or indefinite. Intangible asset with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised

Impairment

The carrying amount of Property, plant and equipment's, Intangible assets and Investment property are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date to assess impairment if any, based on internal / external factors. An asset is treated as impaired, when the carrying cost of
asset exceeds its recoverable value, being higher of value in use and net selling price. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior
accounting period is reversed, if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount.




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(e)

Financial Instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets
Financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents.

At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are subsequently classified under following
three categories according to the purpose for which they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding on specified dates. These financial assets are intended to be held until maturity. Therefore, they are
subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. The EIR amortisation is included as interest income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial Assets at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding on specified dates, as well as held for selling. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date
at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is
reclassified from the OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets at Fair value through Profit or Loss

At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held for trading, or which are measured neither at Amortised Cost nor at fair
value through OCI. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents etc. are classified for measurement at amortised cost while
investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular investments in equity instruments that
would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial recognition may be made to
present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as investments, trade
receivables, advances and security deposits held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated
significantly since initial recognition.

De-recognition

Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective contractual obligations.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on redemption / settlement is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost over the life of the liability using the effective interest method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the short maturity of these instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

M

(8

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair values for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 - This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.derived from prices).

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {(e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of all assets that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease.

Sk
4,



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(h)

(1)

0

Employee Benefits

i. Gratuity

Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets,
together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
determined by actuarial valuation as on the balance sheet date, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

ii. Other short term benefits
Expense in respect of other short term benefit is recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period during which
services are rendered by the employee.

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market
value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any
share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of
Directors.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year after taking credit of the
benefits available under the Income Tax Act and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

i) has alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
i) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that

future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023
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0

(m)

(n)

(0)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
i) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

if}) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same
taxable entity.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a
part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing cost are recognized as expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Assets & Contingent Liabilities;

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful
evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes. Contingent assets are not disclosed in
the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

Operating Segments
(i) Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The
analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

(ii) Unallocated items
Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

(iii) Segment accounting policies
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the

financial statements of the Company as a whole.
- Sh—
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

a)

b)

d)

2.c

2.d

Signifi ounting Jud Istimates & A i

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates, assumptions and
judgements which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statement:

Income taxes

Judgment of the Management is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The
company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from
actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone financial statements.

Contingencies

Judgment of the Management is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment is
made on ECL, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
future. These Includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1,
2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
of primary users of general purpose financial statements. the group does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so
that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
the group is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors The amendments will help entities to distinguish between
accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition
of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. the group does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact init§] finafpial statements.
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Computers
Amount
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2021 4,99
Additions 1.73
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 6.72
Additions Z
Disposals .
As at March 31, 2023 6.72
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31, 2021 4.24
Charge for the year 1.38
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 5.62
Charge for the year 0.56
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 6.18
Net block as at March 31, 2022 1.10
Net block as at March 31, 2023 0.54
4 INTANGIBLE E
Computer Software
Amount
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2021 0.52
Additions -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 0.52
Additions -
Disposals -
As at March 31,2023 0.52
Accumulated amortization
As atMarch 31, 2021 0.45
Charge for the year 0.07
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 0.52
Charge for the year -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 0.52

Net block as at March 31, 2022 =
Net block as at March 31,2023 -




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

5 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Amount
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2021 -
Additions 55.35
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 55.35
Additions 0.81
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 56.16
Accumulated Amortisation
As at March 31, 2021 -
Charge for the year 20.13
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 20.13
Charge for the year 20.92
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 41.05
Net block as at March 31, 2022 35.22
Net block as at March 31, 2023 15.11




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

6

10

Other financial assets: non current

As at
March 31 2023

As at
March 31 2022

Carried at amortised cost

Security deposits 9.14 8.73
Fixed deposit having a remaining maturity 500.00
period of more than twelve months.* -
Loan & Advances# 518.75 -
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 13.37 137.33
Total 541.26 646.06
* Pledge against Bank Guarantee Nil (March 31,2022 Rs.500)
# Balance with related parties (refer note 38)
"BLS E -Service Limited (Formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 518.75 =
(Proceeds from BLS E -Service Limited will commence from April' 2024)
Deferred tax asset & (liabilities)(net)
As at (Charge)/credit Other As at
March 31 2023 for the year comprehensive  March 31 2022
Deferred tax liability on account of
Timing difference on depreciation and amortisation 0.18 (0.07) - 0.25
Timing difference on right to use (3.81) 5.06 (8.87)
Total deferred tax liability (A) (3.63) 4.99 (8.62)
Deferred tax asset on account of
Timing difference on gratuity 2.35 (0.11}) 0.38 2.84
Timing difference on lease liability 4.23 (5.17) = 9.40
Timing difference on preliminary expenses 0.04 - - 0.04
Total deferred tax asset (B) 6.62 (5.28) 0.38 12.28
Deferred tax asset (net) (B-A) 2.99 [0.29) 0.38 3.66
As at (Charge)/credit Other As at
March 31 2022 for the year comprehensive  March 31 2021
Deferred tax liability on account of
Timing difference on depreciation and amortisation 0.25 (0.02) (0.23)
Timing difference on right to use (8.8B7) 8.87 -
Total deferred tax liability (A) (8.62) 8.85 - (0.23)
Deferred tax asset on account of
Timing difference on gratuity 2.84 (0.16) 2.68
Timing difference on lease liability 9.40 (9.40)
Timing difference on preliminary expenses 0.04 0.05 0.09
Total deferred tax asset (B) 12.28 (9.51) 2,77
Deferred tax asset (net) (B-A) 3.66 (0.66) = 3.00
Other non-current assets
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Security deposits 0.81
Total = 0.81
Non-current tax assets
Asat Asat
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Advance tax (net of provisions) 19.89 27.52
Total 19.89 27.52
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
As at Asat

March 31 2023

March 31 2022

Unsecured
Trade receivables

Considered good

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses
Total

|

0.14

e 0.14
_— .
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

11

12

13

14

Ageing for trade receivables- outstanding as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

Particulars

6 months-1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-
considered good =

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered good -

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful
trade receivables -

Total Trade receivables -

Ageing for trade receivables- outstanding as on March 31, 2022 is as follows:

OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

Particulars

6 months-1 year

1-2 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-
considered good -

0.14

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Doubtful -

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered good -

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful -

Less: Allowance for doubtful
trade receivables -

Total Trade receivables -

0.14

0.14

Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31 2023

As at
March 31 2022

Balance with banks:

Current account 319.86 333.75
Cash on hand 46.56 74.05
Total 366.42 407.80
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

As at As at

March 31 2023

March 31 2022

Fixed deposit having a remaining maturity period of more

than three month but less than twelve months.* 1,105.10 684.98
Total 1,105.10 684.98
* Pledge against Bank Guarantee Rs. 201 (March 31, 2022 Nil)
Other financial assets
As at Asat
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Receivables from Punjab Govt (PSeGS) - 0.25
Security deposit - Current (0.52) (0.51)
Advance to employees 0.93 4.58
Security deposit recejvable 0.10 0.10
Wallet# 2,68 7.48
Interest accrued on Loan to E-services 35.42 -
Total 38.61 11.91
# Balance with related parties (refer note 38)
#BLS E -Service Limited (Formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited)
0.50
Other current assets
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 68.37 27.01
Advance against material & services 9.69 58.04
Prepaid expenses 8.55 9.39
Other receivable 0.93 2.55
Total 87.54 96.98

w4
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

15 Equity Share Capital

Particulars AsatMarch31, | AsatMarch 31,
2023 2022

Authorized Share Capital

500,000 (March 31, 2022: 500,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50.00 50.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

500,000 (March 31, 2022: 500,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50.00 50.00

Total 50.00 50.00

a.) Reconciliation of the number of shares

Particulars As atMarch 31,2023 As atMarch 31,2022
Number of shares | AmountinRs. | Number ofshares | AmountinRs.

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00

Add: Changes in capital during the year - - - =

Balance as at the closing of the year 5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend Proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors
is subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of Interim Dividend.

C) Numbers of shares held by holding company

As atMarch 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars o B = —
Number of shares % of holding in Number of shares % of holding in
the class the class
Holding Company
BLS E-Service Limited (Formely known as BLS E-Service Private Limited)* 5,00,000 100% - -
BLS International Services Limited* - - 5,00,000 100%
d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As atMarch 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Number of shares % of holding in Number of shares % of holding in
the class the class
Equity shares of Rs.10 each
BLS E-Service Limited {Formely known as BLS E-Service Private Limited)* 5,00,000 100% - -
BLS International Services Limited* - = 5,00,000 100%

* one share hold by nominee share holder
€) The Company has not issued any bonus shares and there is no buy back of shares in the current year and preceding years.
) The company has d and alloted equity shares during current financial year ended March 31, 2023:

Allotment of 7,41,297 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each, on the right basis on October 31, 2022, to BLS International Services Limited as Share Swap
Consideration against the transfer of 500,000 Equity Shares held by BLS International Services Limited in BLS Kendras Private Limited to BLS E-Services Limited,

ranking pari passu with existing shares.
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

16

17

18

19

20

21

Other equity
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Retained earnings 597.54 297.75
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 626.99 299.74
Total (a) 1,224.53 597.49
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (b) 1.12 0.05
Balance of Retained Earning at the end of reporting period (a+b) 1,225.65 597.54
Description of nature and purpose of reserve
Retained Earning
Retained Earning are the profits that the company has earned till date less dividends (if any) and distribution paid to share holders.
Retained earning is a free reserve available to the company
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans
This represents the actuarial gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income.
Lease liability : Non-current
Asat Asat
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Lease liability (refer note 41) - 16.92
Total - 16.92
Provisions : Non-current
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Provision for employee benefit (refer note 37) 8.79 10.63
Total 8.79 10.63
Lease Liabilty - Current
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Lease liabilty (refer note 41) 16.78 20.42
Total 16.78 20.42
Borrowings : Current
As at As at

March 31 2023

March 31 2022

Loans Repayable on demand :
Unsecured

Loan from BLS IT Services Private Limited .
Total =

150.00
150.00

Company had taken loan from its related party for its business activities. The loans was unsecured and repayable on demand. The loan

carried interest rate 7.00% p,a (SBI prime rate)

*Balance with related parties (refer note 38) -
BLS IT Services Private Limited

Trade payable

150.00

As at
March 31 2023

As at
March 31 2022

Total dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
(refer note 36) -
Total dues to creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises 18.31 27.56
Total 18.31 27.56
Ageing for trade payable outstanding as at March 31, 2023 Is as follows:
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Total

Less than1yr 1-2yr 2-3yr More than 3 yrs
(i) MSME - - - =
(ii) Others 18.31 2 = 18.31
(iii) Diputed dues-MSME - - - -
(iv) Diputed dues-Others - - - =
Total 18.31 - - 18.31




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

22

23

24

25

Ageing for trade payable outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
icul
Particulars Less than1yr 1-2yr 2-3yr More than 3 yrs Total
(i) MSME - - -
(i) Others 27.56 27.56
(iii) Diputed dues-MSME - =
(iv) Diputed dues-Others -
Total 27.56 - 27.56
Other financial liabilities
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
- Expenses payable** 645.50 875.83
- Payable to employees 17.08 21.51
- Government fees payable 20.43 18.74
-Interest accrued and due to other*** - 0.65
-Wallet* 67.38 51.98
- Payable to PSeGS 2.32 2.32
Total 752.71 971.03
* Balance with related parties (refer note 38)
*BLS E -Service Limited (Formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 67.38 -
**BLS International services limited s 54.00
#+BLS IT Services Private Limited 0.65
Other current liabilities
Asat Asat
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Statutory dues payable 104.69 71.45
Total 104.69 71.45
Current tax liabilities (net)
As at As at

March 31 2023

March 31 2022

Current tax provision (net of advance tax)
Total

Provision : Current

As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Provision for employee benefit (refer note 37) 0.53 0.63
Total 0.53 0.63
; St
T




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

26

27

28

29

30

Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Sale of services 7,539.42 6,510.29
Total 7.539.42 6,510.29
Contract Balance As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivable - 0.14
Advance from the Customers - -
Reconciliation of revenue recognition with the contracted price is as follows:
As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31,2022
Contract Price 7,539.42 6,510.29
Reduction towards variable consideration components - -
Revenue Recognised 7,539.42 6,510.29
Other Income
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Miscellaneous income 0.04 2.16
Interest on security deposit 0.40 1.40
Interest on fixed deposit receipts 21.31 54.59
Interest Income on Loan 39.36 -
Interest Income on IT Refund 1.10 ‘
Total 62.21 58.15
Cost of Services
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Purchases 62.38 37.45
Operational expenses 4,764.37 4,036.62
Total 4,826.75 4074.07
Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 141.03 173.38
Contribution to provident & other funds 2.52 3.52
Staff welfare expense (0.59) 15.55
Total 142.96 192.45
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on loan* 8.01 0.72
Interest on Lease Liability 1.84 3.31
Interest others 0.04 0.60
Other financials charges 10.77 15.00
Total 20.66 19.63
*Transaction with related parties (refer note 38)
BLS IT Services P. Ltd. 8.01 0.72

s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

31

32

32.1

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 0.56 1.38
Amortization on intangible assets - 0.07
Amortization on Right to Use assets 20.92 20.13
Total 21.48 21.58
Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Management consultancy Fee* 150.00 230.00
Rent expense (refer note no. 41) 3,51 7.00
Printing & stationery expense 138.90 94.00
Software expense 19.56 19.55
Legal & professional expenses (refer note no. 32.1) 98.14 134.02
Repair & maintenance expense- others 80.62 92.88
Diesel & fuel expense 108.29 86.27
Office maintenance expense 0.71 0.06
Communication cost 13196 121.27
Sewa kendra expenses 675.88 567.67
Vehicle running & maintenance expense 3.79 5.73
Business promotion expense 21.19 196.75
Conveyance & travelling expense 108.49 93.60
Balance written off 2112 0.27
Miscellaneous expense 38.07 3513
Information technology expenses* 148.00 166.00
Insurance expense 3.57 6.18
Bank charges 0.11 0.07
Total 1,751.91 1,856.45
*Transaction with related parties (refer note 38)
BLS E-Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 150.00 -
BLS International Services Ltd. - 230.00
Starfin India Private Limited 148 166
Payment to auditors
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory audit fees 3.00 3.00
Total 3.00 3.00

e
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Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

33

34

35

36

Earning Per Share (EPS)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to equity
shareholders (Rs.) 626.99 299.74
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating
basic EPS 5,00,000 5,00,000
Weighted average potential equity shares = -
Total Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for
calculating diluted EPS 5,00,000 5,00,000
Earning per share ( Basic & Diluted) (Rs.) 125.40 59.95
Face value per equity share (Rs.) 10 10
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS ( TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Guarantees issued by the bank on behalif of the Company 2,000 2,000

LEASES

The Company has taken premises for some office space under cancellable operating lease agreements. Terms of the lease

include terms for renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation.

Lease and rent payments recognised in statement of profit an loss amounting Rs. 3.51 Lac/- - (P.Y Rs. 7.00 Lac/-)

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006

Based on the information available, there are no vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures as required by section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

Particulars

As at

March 31,2023

As at March 31,
2022

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as
at the end of each accounting vear

Delayed payment of Principal amount paid beyond appointed date during the
entire financial year

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the accounting year.

Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making the
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding interest specified under this Act.

Amount of Interest due and payable for the period (where principal has been
|paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting vear

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
Micro and Small Enterprises for the purpose of disallowances as deductible

expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act,2006

No parties have been identified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 other than
disclosed above. This disclosure has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company.
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37, Emplovee Benefits

Table Showlng Chaages In Present Valuo of OWligations:

—

Peripd For the period ended 31 March, 2023 For the perlod ended 31 March, 2022
Preseat value of the ollipation <t the beoinning of Loe period 11.26 10.70
Interast cost 082 0.78
Current setvice cost 1.70 274
Benafits pad (iFanvi (2.96] (2.90)
Actuarial (gain}/luss (1.50] (0.06)
Presentvalue of the ohiligaticn at the end of the pariod 9.32 11.26

Bifurcation of total Actuarial {gain) floss on liabllities

Period

For the perlod ended 31 March, 2023

For the period ended 31 March, 2022

Actuarial gain/ losses from changes in 'emoeraphics assumptions {mortality) Not Applicable Not Applicable

Actuariidl (gain]l lusses from changes In financial assurptions (0.16) (0.23}

Experience Ad|ustmant [gain}/ loss for Plan liabilities (1.34) 0.17

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive Income (1.50) (0.06)

The t to berec d {n the Bal Sheet

Petlod For the period ended 31 March, 2023 For the perlod ended 31 March, 2022
erlo

Funded Status

Present value of the obligation at the end of the peried 9.33 11.27

Fair value of plan assets at end of period - -

Net liahility/{asset] recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 9.33 11.27
{9.33) (11.27)

Best estimate for contribution during next Period

Other comprehensive (income)/expenses (Remeasurement)

E r Ized In the st of Profit and Loss

Yeriod For the period ended 31 March, 2023 For the perlod ended 31 March, 2022
[ntereat cost 0.82 0.78
Current service cost 1.70 2.74
Expected pdturn on plan asset =

Expenszes to be recognlzed In the statement of P41 dccounts 252 352

For the perlod ended 31 March, 2023

For the perlod ended 31 March, 2022

Perlod

Cuntulative unrecopnized actusrial (galn)/loss opening B/F (2.82) (2.76)
Actuarial [pain]/loss - obligation {1.50) (0.06)
Actuarial (gain)/Inss - plan assets = =
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss {1.50) {0.06)
|Cumulative total actuarfal (paln) /loss .6/F (4.32) (2.82)
Net Interest Cost

Perfod For the perlod ended 31 March, 2023 For the period ended 31 March, 2022
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation n.g2 0.78
Interest incomie on plan assets = -
Net Interest cost{income) 082 0.78

-



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331179)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Experience AdJustment

Period

For the period ended 31 March, 2023

For the period ended 31 March, 2022

Experience Adjustment (Gain)/loss for Plan liabilities

[134)

Experience Ad|ustment Gaing (loss) for Plan assets

0417

Summary of membership data at the date of valuation and statistics based thereon:

For the period ended 31 March, 2023

For the period ended 31 March, 2022

Salary

Period

Number of employess 11 17
Total monthly salary 4.57 6,55
Average Past Service(Years) 4.0 3.5
Average remaining working lives of employeesYears) 15,5 19.2
Average Ape{years] 425 388
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) inyears 13 17
Average monthly salary 0.42 .39
The assumptions employed for calculations are tabulated:

Discount rate 7.50 % per annum 7.25 % perannum
Salary Growth Rate 5.00 % per annum 5.00 % per annum
Mortality IALM 2012-14 JALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return ] =
Withdrawal Rate (per annum) 5.00 % p.a. 5.00 % p.a.
Benefits valued:

Normal Retirement Ape 58 Years 58 Years

Last drawn qualifying salary

Vesting Period

5 Years of service

Benefits on Normal Retirement

Last drawn gualifying salary

5 Years of service

15/26"Salary® Past Service (yr)

Benefit on early exit due to death and disabllity

15/26*3alary*Past Service (yT]

As above except that no vestihg conditions
apply

As above except that no vesting conditions|
apply

Limit

20

20

Current Llabllity (*Itis probable outlay In next 12 months as required by the Companles Act) :

For the period ended 31 March, 2023

For the perlod ended 31 March, 2022

Perlod

Current Liability (Short Term)* 0.53 0.63
Non Current Liabllity (Long Term) 8.79 10.63
Total Liability 9.32 1126

Sensitivity Analysis :

Perlod
|2er

For the period ended 31 March, 2023

Defined benefit obligation (Base)

9.32 Lac @ salary Increase rate: 5 % and
disvount rate : 7.50%

For the period ended 31 March, 2022
11,26,556 @ salary Increase rate : 5 % and

discount rate: 7.25%

Liability with x % Increase in Discount rate B.60 Lac; x=1.00% [ change (8)%] 10.27 Lac; %= 1.00% [ change [9)%]
Liability with % % decrease in Discount rate 10,14 Lac; x= 1.00% | change 9%] 12.41 Lac;  x= 1.00% [ change 10%]
Liability with x % Increase in salary growth rate 10.15 Lag;  x=1.00% | change 9%] 12.42 Lac; %= 1.00% [ change 10%]
Liability with x % decrease In m]ag growth rate 8,57 Lag; x=1.00% [ change (8)%] 10.24 Lac; x=1,00% [ change {9794]
Liabillty with % % Increase in withdrawal rate 9.42 Lac; %= 1,008 [ change 1%] 11.39 Lac; %= 1.00% | change 191

Liability with x % decrease In withdrawal rate 9.21 Lac; x=1.00% [ change (1]%] 11.11 Lac; %= 1.00% [ change (1]%)]

Maturity Profile of projected benefit obligatlon: from the fund

For the year ended March 31,
2023

For the period ended 31 March, 2022

Gratulty (Unfunded)

Gratuity (Unfunded

1st Following Year

2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year

5th Following Year

After 5 Years

0.63
0.24
0.25
0.27
0.27
9.60

St



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount In (Takhs) unless otherwise stated

38 Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
A) Ultlmate Holding Company
BLS International Services Limited
B) Holding Company
BLS E-Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services
Private Limited (w.e.f October 31, 2022)
€} Fellow Subsidlarles
BLS E- Solutions Private Limited#
BLS IT Services Private Limlted#
Starfin India Private Limited*
Zero Mass Private Limited*
Reired BLS International Private Limited#
BLS International FZE#
BLS Internadonal Services, UAE*
BLS Internatonal Services Canada INC.A
BLS International Services Norway AS#
BLS International Services Singapore PTE LTD.»
BLS International Services Malaysia SDN BHD#
BLS International Services (UK) Limited®
Consular Outsourcing BLS Services Inc.{USA)#
BLS International Vize Hizmetleri Ltd. Sti.(Turkey)”
BLS International Services Limlted (Hongkong)*
BLS International (pty) Limited(South africa)*
Balozi Liaison Services International Limited(kenya) (w.e.f 01 Aprll' 2022)~
BLS International Services SRL (Italy) (W.e.f. 01 April'2022)**
BLS International Employee Welfare Trust#
~ Subsidlary companies of BLS [nternational FZE
* Subsidiary of BLS E-Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited
** Subsidiary of BLS International Services (UK) Limited
# Subsidiary companies of BLS International Services Limited
D} KeyManagement Personnel (KMP) Deslgnation
Mr. Dinesh Sharma Director
Mr. Sanjeev Kumnar Director
Ms. Shivani Mishra Director
Mr. Abinav Goel Director
E)} Transactonand balances with related parties during the Year
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:
Particulars Nature of Transactlon 2022-23 2021-22
1  |BLS Internatlonal Service Limlted Relmbursement of Expenses (Paid)
Management Consultancy Services 230.00
Loan received during the year - -
Loan repald during the year - =
Other payables(Paid) 169.60 -
Interest expenses payable (Paid) - 13.30
Closing Balance 2 =
Interest payable z N
Other payables - 54.00
Off balance sheet ltems - -
Performance bank guarantee taken
2,000.00 2,000.00
2 |BLSIT Services Private Limlted Loan/ Advance Given - 50.86
Loan/ Advance paid (150.00) (200.86)
Rental Income 0.72 0.72
Other Recelvable { Rent ) Received 2.10 =
Other Recelvable - -
Interest Exp, 8.01 0.72
| Closing Balance
Balance Receivables 0.31 150.00
Interest payable - 0.65
Other Receivable { Rent | - 0.85
3 |BLSE-Service Limited (Formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) |Loan/ Advance given
1,836.25 145.00
Loan/ Advance recovered {1,317.51) (145.00)
Relmbursement of Expenses - 0.02
Rental Income 0.72
Purchase of E-wallet top up 61.25 625.85
E-wallet transaction done - 622.32
Commission income - 3.23
Commlssion expense 6.98 424
Franchisee fee pald = =
Interest Income 39.36 -
Manag Consultancy Services 150.00 =
Other payahle {164.94) 7.20
Other payahle [Paid) {4.64) -

\0'__3 d
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwlse stated

Discount 0.26 =
Sales 60.60 -
Purchase - 4.59
Closing Balances: - -
Interest receivables 35.42 -
Loan Recoverable 518.75 -
UP E-wallet top up 67.88 -
Other Recelvable ( Rent) - 0.85

4 |BLS E Solutions Private Limlted Loan/ Advance Given - -
Loan/ Advance received - s
Other Receivable { Rent) 0.23 -
Rental Income 0.72 -
Insurance Receivable 0.99 -
Closing Balances:
Balance receivables 0.62 -

5 |Starfin Indla Private Limlted Loan/ Advance paid - (55.24)
Loan/ Advance received - 55.24
Other Receivable Received 243.89 -
Technical Services 148.00 166.00
ClosIng Balance = n
Balance Payable 123.50 192.56
Wallet Top up liability

6 |Gaurav Aggarwal Professional Consultancy fee 26.00 34.94

7 |Riya Aggarwal Professlonal Consultancy fee 32.00 43.00

8 |Abhinav Goel Professional Consultancy fee 12,00 11.00

9 |Karan Aggarwal Salary 6.00 6.00

T




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL.2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

39 Income Taxes
a. Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current Income Tax
Current tax 211.78 103.73
Deferred tax Charge/ (Credit) 0.29 (0.66)
Tax for earlier year (1.19) 1.45
Total 210.88 104.52
Income taxes that are charged or credited directly in equity -
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Deferred tax
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 0.38 0.01
Total 0.38 0.01
Reconciliation of Tax expense
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 837.87 404.26
Enacted income tax rate* 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax credit calculated at Income tax rate 210.87 101.74
Add/(deduct) impact of :

Expenses not allowable in income tax 1.10 0.84
Expenses allowable in income tax (5.68) (5.41)
Tax for earlier year (1.19) 1.45
Others 5.78 5.90
Tax Expense 210.88 104.52

* Tax rate of 25.168% includes corporate tax of 22% , Surcharge 10% and health and education cess of 4% on the tax amount

St



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount [n (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

40(A) Category-Wise Classification of Financials Instruments
Amount in (INR)
AsatMarch 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
SLNo Particulars Note Non-current Current Non-current Current
a) Flnanclal assets designated at amortised cost
M Flxed deposits 6&12 - 1,105.10 500.00 684.98
m Security deposits 6&13 9.14 8.73
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 - 366.42 - 407.80
(iv) | Trade receivables 10 - - . 0.14
w) Interest accrued on fixed deposit 6 13.37 - 137.33 -
(vi) Other financial assets 13 38.61 1191
(vil) Loan & Advances 6 518.75 - - .
541.26 1,510.13 646.06 1,104.83
b) Financial llabllity deslgnated at amortlsed cost
(i} Loan from fellow subsidiary 20 - - - 150.00
(i Trade payables 21 - 18.31 - 27.56
(iii) Lease liabilities 17&19 - 16.78 16.92 20.42
(iv] | Other financial liability 22 - 752.71 = 971.03
- 787.80 16.92 1,169.01

40(B) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(1) Financial Instrument measured at Amortised Cost

40(C).

a)

b)

The carrying amount of financial assets and financials labilities measured at amortised cost in the financials statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair value since the Company does
notanticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

EINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT- OBIECTIVIES AND POLICIES
The Company's financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowlngs, trade payable and others payable. The company's financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents,
other bank balances, loans, trade payable and other receivables.

The company has exposure to the following risks arlsing from financial Instruments:
- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk; and

- Market risk

Risk management framework

The company's board of directors has the overall responsibility for the management of these risks and is supported by Senior Management that advises on the approprlate financial risk
governance framework. The Company has the risk management pollcles and systems in place and are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company’s audit committee oversees how management monltors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of risk management framework [n
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The framework seeks to identify, asses and mitigate financlal risk in order to minimise potential adverse effects on the company's financial performance.

Credit Risk

Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company If a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arlses from the operating activities
primarily (trade receivables) and investing activities including deposits with banks and other corporate deposits. The company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its
estimate of expected losses in respect of financial assets. A default of financial assets is when there is a Signlant increase in the credit risk which fs evaluated based on the business environment.
The assets are written off when the company certain about the non- recovery.

(1) Trade & other recelvables:
Customer credit risk is managed based on company's established policy, procedures and controls. The company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account thelr financial
position, past experience and other factors.

Credit risk is reduced by receiving pre-payments. The company has a well defined sales policy to minimize its risk of credlt defaults. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and
assessed. Impalrment analysis is performed passed on historical data at each reporting date on an Individual basis. However a large number of minor receivables are grouped Into homogenous
groups and assessed for impairment collectively.

Expected Credlt loss under simplified approach for Trade recelvables:

Asat Asat
Agelng March31,2023  March 31,2022
Agelng of gross carrylng amount
less than 180 days E -
181-365 days =) 0.00
More than 1 year - 0.14
Gross Carrylng amount - 0.14
Expected Credit loss - -
Net carrying amount - 014

(i1) Financlal instruments and cash deposits :

Credit risk from balances with banks and other financlal Instruments Is managed by Company in accordance with lts policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit llmits asslgned to each counterparty, Counterparty credit limits are revlewed by the management, and may be updated throughout the year.
Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other financial instruments has been measured on the 12-month expected credit Joss basls and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equlvalents have low credIt risk based on external credIt ratings of counterparties.

Based on the assessment there Is no Impairment In the above financial assets,




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount In (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

¢} Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or ata reasonable price. The Company's treasury department is responsible for
maintenance of liquidity, continuity of funding as well as timely settlement of debts. In addition, policies related to mitigation of risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors
the Company’s net liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows vis a vis debt service fulfilment obligation,

Maturlty profile of financlal liabllitles
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 Years Total

As at March 31, 2023

Lease liability 17.42 - - 17.42
Trade payables 18.31 - E 18.31
Other financial current llability 752.71 - - 752.71
As at March 31, 2022

Loan from fellow subsidiary 150.00 - - 150.00
Lease liabllity 22.39 17.42 E 39.81
Trade payables 27.56 - - 27.56
Other financial current liability 971.03 - - 971.03

d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return.
1) The Company Is not exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency risk)and market value of its investments.
1) Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to long term debt. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. With
all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates composition of fixed and floating rate borrowing of the company and Impact of floating rate borrowings on company's
profitability.

40(D) Ca na

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to malntaln investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The primary obJective of the
Company’s Capital management is to maximise shareholder’s value. The Company manages its capital and makes adjustment to it in light of the changes in economlc and market conditions.

The Company manages capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equlty. The gearing at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Borrowings (Current) - 150.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalents Including bank balances (366.42) (407.80)
Total Debt(i) A (366.42) {257.80)
Total Equity(li) 1,275.65 647.54
Overall financing (i) +(if) B 909.23 389.74
Gearing ratlo A/B -40% -664%0n

54~
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

41 Lease Liability 2022-23 2021-22
As at beginning of the year 37.34 -
Additions - 55.36
Deletions - -
Accretion of interest 1.84 3.31
Payments (22.40) (21.33)
As at end of the year 16.78 37.34
Current 16.78 20.42
Non-current - 16.92

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Leases under Ind AS 116 2022-23 2021-22
Amortization of right of use assets 20.92 20.13
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.84 3.31
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 3.51 7.00
Total amount recognised in Statement of profit or loss 26.27 30.44

no P
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

53 Segment Information
Information about primary segment
The company has engaged in the business of providing citizen services under an e-governance projects of punjab Govt. and has only reportable segment in accordance
with IND AS-108 'Operating Segment'. The information relating to this operating segment is reviewed regularly by the Key managerial personnel ('KMP') to make
decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently
applied to record revenue and expenditure in the segment, and are as set out in the significant accounting policies.
Geographical Information
The company has engaged in the business of providing citizen services under an e-governance projects of punjab Govt of India. Hence doing business within the India.
Revenue from operation
As at March 31,2023  As at March 31, 2022
Within India 7.539.42 6,510.29
Outside India - -
7,539.42 6,510.29
Non-Current Assets
As atMarch 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within India 579.79 714.37
Outside India - -
579.79 714.37
54 Impairment Review
Assets are tested for impairment whenever there are any internal or external indicators of impairment. Impairment test is performed at the level of each Cash Generating
Unit ('CGU’) or groups of CGUs within the Company at which the assets are monitored for internal management purposes, within an operating segment. The impairment
assessment is based on higher of value in use and value from sale calculations. During the year, the testing did not result in any impairment in the carrying amount of
other assets. The measurement of the cash generating units’ value in use is determined based on financial plans that have been used by management for internal
purposes. The planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short to- mid-term market conditions.
Key assumptions used In value-In-use calculatlons are;-
(i) Operating margins (Earnings before interest and taxes), (il) Discount Rate, (i) Growth Rates and (iv) Capital Expenditure
55 Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
56 Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
57 Subsequents Events
Subsequent to the Balance sheet date, status of the BLS E-Services Limited (Subsidiary of the Company) was changed from private to public company. Consequently, the
name of BLS E-Services Limited has been changed to BLS E-Services Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation pursuant to change of name was issued by the
Registrar of Companies(ROC) on April 10, 2023,
58  Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year's classification.
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